

GOVERNANCE INITIATIVE: RFP OVERVIEW

Round 26 - Fall 2025 | Request for Proposals (RFP)

J-PAL's Governance Initiative (GI) funds randomized evaluations of strategies to improve governance in low- and middle-income countries. GI calls for proposals from J-PAL affiliates, J-PAL invited researchers, J-PAL postdocs, J-PAL staff with PhDs, and PhD students of J-PAL's affiliates and invited researchers. The GI Review Paper identifies research priorities (<u>full paper</u>; <u>executive summary</u>), as does the <u>GI Updated Research Agenda</u>. All letters of interest (LOIs) for <u>full</u>, <u>pilot</u>, <u>multidisciplinary</u>, and <u>travel/proposal development grants</u> are due via WizeHive by 5:00 p.m. ET on November 7, 2025. By invitation only, all proposals are due via WizeHive by 5:00 p.m. ET on December 19, 2025.

To apply to this RFP, <u>please follow these instructions</u> to submit an application via our online portal. For additional support during business hours, please reach out to application_help@povertyactionlab.org and CC gi@povertyactionlab.org. For all other questions, please email gi@povertyactionlab.org.

CONTENTS

| TIMELINE FOR FALL 2025 RFP | 2 |
|---|--------------|
| OVERVIEW | 2 |
| BACKGROUND | 2 |
| AWARD TYPES | 3 |
| Full Randomized Evaluation Research Projects (up to \$400,000, suggested period of performance: 24 - 30 months) | 4 |
| Pilot Studies (up to \$75,000, suggested period of performance: one year) | 4 |
| Travel or Proposal Development (up to \$10,000, suggested period of performance: si | ix months) 4 |
| Multidisciplinary Grants - Type I and Type II (up to \$30,000, suggested period of per | rformance |
| type I: 18 months; type II: 24 months) | 4 |
| ELIGIBILITY | 5 |
| Notes for All Award Types | 6 |
| Process for receiving award if funded | 6 |
| PROJECT TIMELINE | 6 |
| RELATED INITIATIVES | 7 |
| J-PAL REGIONAL OFFICES | 7 |

Select non-affiliate faculty who have been nominated, approved, and notified of their eligibility to submit proposals. Note: This request for proposals has been sent directly to researchers eligible to apply for GI research grants. Please do not circulate externally, given this restriction. If you have questions regarding your eligibility to participate, we welcome you to inquire by emailing us at GI@povertyactionlab.org. Among those eligible to apply, note that all applicants are limited to being named (as PI or Co-PI) on a maximum of three proposals to GI per 12-month period.



| SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS | 8 |
|--------------------------------|----|
| ADMINISTRATIVE NOTES | 9 |
| PAYMENTS AND SUBAWARDS | 9 |
| CODE OF CONDUCT | 9 |
| GRANT CONDITIONS | 10 |
| LINKS TO ALL RFP MATERIALS | 13 |
| OTHER FAQS | 13 |
| Annex I: J-PAL Leads by Region | 13 |

TIMELINE FOR FALL 2025 RFP

| Release Date | October 15, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. ET |
|--|-----------------------------------|
| Required Letter of Intent (LOI) Deadline *All applicants will receive an <i>invitation to proceed</i> with full proposal development | November 7, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. ET |
| Full Proposal Deadline *By invitation | December 19, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. ET |
| Anticipated Notification Date | March 31, 2026 at 5:00 p.m. ET |

OVERVIEW

BACKGROUND

Governments around the world spend billions of dollars annually to provide basic services and development programs aimed at improving the lives of those living in poverty. At the same time, a large number of foundations and international aid organizations channel their development dollars through government-run programs. The effectiveness of such public spending is often compromised by a number of connected factors: policies that do not reflect the needs or preferences of the people, leakages due to corruption, lack of community participation, or poor oversight of public spending. Despite the crucial importance of good governance for development, many questions about how to improve governance remain unanswered. As a response to this need, GI funds randomized impact evaluations of programs designed to improve participation in the political and policy process, reduce leakages in public programs, and strengthen state capacity.



FOCUS

GI funds randomized evaluations of programs and policies aimed at improving governance in low- and middle-income countries, building a better bridge between field experiments and underlying governance theories. GI's research priorities are identified in the Governance Initiative Review Paper (<u>full paper</u>; <u>executive summary</u>) which summarizes existing evidence in governance from primarily economics and political science, with an emphasis on field evaluations. The Governance Review Paper is organized around the following themes:

- 1. The impact of political participation on policy outcomes, growth, and citizen satisfaction
- 2. The determinants of political participation: institutions, demographics, information, participation in government programs, and technology²
- 3. Reliable measures of corruption and leakages
- 4. The impact of corruption and leakages on individuals, firms, the provision of goods and services, and the correction of externalities
- 5. The determinants of leakages and corruption: the incentives and structure of bureaucracy, technology, transparency, the judiciary system, demographics, and anticorruption in the long run
- 6. The selection and recruitment of public officials: the effects of wages and compensation, and government screening
- 7. Using incentives to improve the performance of public officials: compensation, financial incentives, and nonfinancial incentives
- 8. Monitoring public service delivery: information flows, government monitoring, and citizen monitoring
- 9. E-governance and demographics as cross-cutting factors

If a researcher is uncertain about whether a research project is eligible for GI, please email <u>GI@povertyactionlab.org</u>.

AWARD TYPES

Please note that GI was established to fund randomized impact evaluations of programs and policies being implemented in the field. As a general rule, GI does not fund pure lab experiments. A proposal may be considered if there is a randomized field evaluation of an underlying program or policy which supplements a lab experiment. For the Spring 2025 RFP, GI invites proposals under four (4) award types.

Full Randomized Evaluation Research Projects (up to \$400,000, suggested period of performance: 24 - 30 months)

These grants are for research projects at a mature level of development. Not only must the research question be clear, but applicants must also demonstrate a commitment from implementing partners, a

² For proposals related to political participation in elections, please note that U.S. federal tax law prohibits GI from using funds for any political campaign that is not candidate or position neutral. GI will screen all elections-related proposals to ensure that they are in compliance with this regulation. More information on this regulation can be found on the <u>JRS website</u>.



method of randomization, well-defined instruments, and sample size estimates from power calculations. Proposals can also be submitted for funding the continuation of research projects that have already started without GI funding (including those for which field data collection has been completed). The expectation is that these projects will result in a paper publishable in a top economics or political science journal. De-identified data should be made publicly available within three years of the end of data collection (sooner if required by donors), or within 60 days of a paper's acceptance in a journal.

The total amount awarded to a single project, including any GI funding for proposal development or piloting, will not exceed \$400,000.³ Please note that, in general, full research project proposals with budgets exceeding \$250,000 are rarely funded given the high quality and volume of all proposals received and GI's limited resources.

Pilot Studies (up to \$75,000, suggested period of performance: one year)

These grants are for studies with a clear research question, but for which the design and implementation requires further testing and pilot data.⁴ The expectation is that these projects will ultimately develop into full-scale randomized evaluations.

Travel or Proposal Development (up to \$10,000, suggested period of performance: six months)

These grants cover exploratory work related to preliminary research ideas, such as conducting background research, developing partnerships, visiting field sites, and collecting preliminary data. The expectation is that these funds will be used to support costs related to PI travel to develop a proposal for a pilot or a full randomized evaluation during a subsequent call for proposals. The expectation is that these funds will be used to support costs related to PI travel to develop a proposal for a pilot or full-scale randomized evaluation during a subsequent call for proposals. **Please note these grants are provided on a cost-reimbursable basis; for more details, see the travel/proposal development narrative** linked on the <u>GI RFP release page</u>.

Multidisciplinary Grants – Type I and Type II (up to \$30,000, suggested period of performance type I: 18 months; type II: 24 months)

GI is continuing its multidisciplinary funding window to facilitate and sponsor multidisciplinary experimental research activities. GI seeks research proposals that combine insights from applied economics and political science with those from other disciplines (including social sciences, humanities and, potentially, natural sciences) to answer pressing governance questions, with a preference for proposals incorporating theory, methods, and/or analytical frameworks drawn from psychology and behavioral science. Multidisciplinary grants must relate to political participation. We strongly recommend that approaches from other disciplines inform how research questions are formulated and

³ In rare circumstances, proposals with a compelling reason for requesting more than \$400,000 maybe considered on a case-by-case basis.

⁴ Please note that full evaluations requesting less than \$75,000 are considered full research projects and evaluated accordingly. The criteria for pilot funding apply only to proposals requesting funds to conduct piloting, or pre-randomization, activities.



answered, not just how inputs and outcomes are measured.

These grants will fund the following activities:

- Type I: Exploratory research, which may also include travel activities, to (a) address a general topic of interest within the field of governance and (b) propose ideas for how the topic might be explored through a future randomized evaluation that incorporates theory, methods, or analytical frameworks from disciplines outside economics and political science. Proposals do not need to include a detailed program or evaluation design.
- Type II: Additional research activities on top of an ongoing or recently completed randomized impact evaluation—including (but not limited to) the addition of a new survey module, treatment arm, or qualitative fieldwork—that draw from disciplines outside economics and political science.

Both Type I and Type II activities can include other costs associated with promoting interactions and collaborations between researchers from different disciplines centered around the development of a research project in the governance space (including travel, but excluding high-income countries PI salary costs).

All multidisciplinary projects must have a PI or co-PI from a discipline other than economics, political science, public policy, or similar programs with a focus on applied microeconomic methods. We also encourage proposals by eligible PhD students (see Eligibility section below). Successful grant proposals will be eligible to apply for larger pilot and full-scale grants during the Governance Initiative's future RFPs (see GI RFP Launch Page).

ELIGIBILITY

J-PAL affiliates, J-PAL postdocs, all J-PAL invited researchers, and PhD students of J-PAL affiliates and invited researchers are eligible to apply for GI funding. Please note that GI invited researchers are nominated and reviewed on a trimester basis, with the review based on a nominee's previous research with a particular emphasis on the ability to perform randomized evaluations. All proposals may include collaborators outside of this network; we welcome proposals from multidisciplinary research teams under all grant types.

In some cases, PhD students are eligible to apply for travel/proposal development grants or up to \$50,000 in pilot or full-scale funding. To be eligible, PhD students must have a J-PAL affiliate or GI invited researcher on their thesis committee. This adviser must provide a letter of support and indicate willingness to remain involved in a supervisory role throughout the lifetime of the project. In addition, in order to apply for up to \$50,000 for pilot or full-scale funding, graduate students must provide documented evidence of successful pilot activities, funded either through a GI travel/proposal development grant or other sources.

Notes for All Award Types

• To prevent concentration of awards to any specific researchers, and to reduce the burden on



initiative review boards, applicants are limited to submitting three proposals, inclusive of all proposal types, per 12-month period per initiative (either as PI or co-PI). For example, if a researcher submitted two pilot or full-scale proposals in our Spring 2025 round, they can then only submit a maximum of 1 pilot or full-scale proposal in our Fall 2025 round.

- In order to be considered for new initiative grants, applicants must be current on reporting for all their other grants, across all J-PAL initiatives. Researchers whose projects are more than 2 months late on any reports to any J-PAL Initiative despite reminders from J-PAL and who have not received an approved extension will not be eligible to have new projects funded by J-PAL. You may submit applications to the Initiative, but your application will not be considered for funding until your deliverables become current.
- Projects may be subject to additional review based on the country of implementation. If applicable, applicants will be notified during the proposal review process.

Process for receiving award if funded

We aim to complete this process within 90 days of receiving all your forms and IRB approvals. We can backdate the award to cover expenses from the Award Date or the date of IRB approval, whichever is later. If a project includes non-Human Subjects work prior to the IRB approval, please let us know following the award and we may in some cases be able to cover those costs (post-award, but pre-IRB) under the award.

The process MIT follows is thus:

- 1. The GI Review Board sends an official award notification letter.
- 2. If not already submitted, J-PAL requests your institution's approval of the proposal (letter of transmission) and your institutional IRB approval.⁵
- 3. MIT establishes a subaward to the institution to receive the award.
- 4. Institute to receive award invoices MIT for expenses incurred for the project on a cost reimbursable basis.

PROJECT TIMELINE

Grantees whose projects are exclusively about state capacity or corruption and leakages must complete research activities by 12/31/2027. Grantees whose projects are primarily about political participation must complete research activities by 5/31/2028.

RELATED INITIATIVES

Please do not submit the same proposal to more than one J-PAL or IPA initiative at the same time. Before applying to GI, consider whether your proposal may be better suited for the initiatives below. These initiatives share similar themes and support rigorous research that will lead to policy

⁵ In the case that IRB approval is not already in place when funding decisions are made, proposed start dates should reflect time needed to get IRB approval by the IRB of record, as well as time required to establish a reliance agreement and move forward in the subaward granting process.



relevant findings. If you are uncertain about which initiative to apply to, please contact GI@povertyactionlab.org.

<u>Crime and Violence Initiative (CVI)</u>: CVI funds evaluations that focus on preventing, mitigating, and responding to the effects of crime, violence, and conflict. Key themes include understanding the motivations behind crime and violence, preventing violence before it occurs, improving law enforcement and justice systems, understanding and combating criminal and extremist groups, promoting social integration in fragile settings, strengthening state and institutional capacity in fragile and conflict-affected states, preventing the rollback of fundamental rights, and exploring the links between climate change and conflict. **Contact:** cvi@povertyactionlab.org

Humanitarian Protection Initiative (HPI): HPI supports research to generate evidence to inform policies and programs that prevent and mitigate physical, psychological, social, and legal harm to conflict-affected populations. Competitive proposals will demonstrate an ability to produce policy- and practice-relevant evidence on final protection outcomes. These include but are not limited to the protection of civilians during conflicts; the rights of detainees; the respect of humanitarian laws; the incidence of violence; levels of anxiety, depression or post-traumatic stress disorder in the intervention communities; the use of negative coping strategies by affected populations; the rate of child soldier recruitment; land ownership and legal status; and the incidence of abuse and exploitation linked to peacekeeping missions. Contact: hpi/@povertyactionlab.org

J-PAL Digital Identification and Finance Initiative in Africa (DigiFI): DigiFI Africa aims to grow the evidence base around innovations in identification and payments by supporting governments in Africa in their efforts to monitor and evaluate relevant reforms. **Contact:** digifiafrica@povertyactionlab.org

<u>J-PAL Social Protection Initiative (SPI):</u> In collaboration with <u>Evidence for Policy Design (EPoD)</u> at the Harvard Kennedy School, SPI funds randomized evaluations of social protection programs in lowand middle-income countries and supports policy engagement to share insights from completed research. **Contact:** <u>spi@povertyactionlab.org</u>

For information on related initiatives coordinated between J-PAL and Innovation for Poverty Action, please visit the webpages for the <u>Peace and Recovery Initiative</u> and the <u>Displaced Livelihoods Initiative</u>.

J-PAL REGIONAL OFFICES

If your proposal involves a country with a J-PAL office, <u>contact the relevant office 3-4 weeks before submission</u>. These offices have strong connections with policymakers, understand regional policy priorities, and offer infrastructure to support research and scaling activities.

If this project takes place in a country that has a J-PAL office but it is <u>not</u> the host institution, please detail the reasoning in the Partnership section of the application. Your answer will help us understand how J-PAL offices can be more competitive and better respond to the needs of PIs. <u>Annex I</u> lists the



point persons at each J-PAL regional office.

SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

To respond to this RFP, please follow the directions listed below.

- 1) Please click on the link of the application you want to apply for: <u>full</u>, <u>pilot</u>, <u>multidisciplinary</u>, and <u>travel/proposal development grants</u>. Please follow the instructions in J-PAL's portal, WizeHive, to complete your registration⁶.
- 2) Submit a required Letter of Interest (LOI) by the deadline above.
- 3) If you receive an invitation to apply to the main application, please follow the next steps outlined in the relevant proposal guidelines documents below.

Please read the relevant Proposal Guidelines document on the GI RFP release page in detail before answering the proposal questions within WizeHive. Each of the following documents includes a checklist and guidance on what to address within each narrative prompt. Use these guidelines to guide your completion of all required submission materials based on the appropriate proposal type. All guidelines are on the GI RFP release page.

- Proposal Guidelines: RCTs
- Proposal Guidelines: Pilot studies
- Proposal Guidelines: Travel/Proposal development grant
- Proposal Guidelines: Multidisciplinary grants
- 4) Upon completing your proposal and uploading proposal attachments (budget, letters, etc.), submit the proposal by the deadline above.

ADMINISTRATIVE NOTES

PAYMENTS AND SUBAWARDS

RCT, pilot, and scaling grants are provided under an award from MIT to the grantee's host institution. More information about the policies below can be found <u>here</u>.

⁶ If you experience technical difficulties, please contact GI@povertyactionlab.org



Institute to Receive Award (ITRA) and Principal Investigator (PI) Alignment:

- The ITRA must employ the PI formally named in the award. This formally-named PI will be the researcher responsible for the subaward agreement, as authorized by the Letter of Transmission. The formally-named PI must be:
 - An employee of the ITRA
 - o PI named in the Letter of Transmission
 - The main PI named in the IRB approval and IRB application

Institutional Review Board (IRB) Requirements:

- The IRB is held by the institution that enters into the subaward agreement with MIT. The IRB must have <u>IORG</u> status and <u>FWA</u>, or
- If the institution does not have its own IRB, the institution must engage the services of a commercial IRB or third party IRB to review and provide oversight for the research activities.

Subaward Setup: For grants with human subject research, once all materials including IRB approvals/exemptions have been received, MIT typically takes 90 days to establish the subaward. Please provide conservative rather than optimistic estimates for start and end dates to reduce the likelihood of needing to submit no-cost extension requests.

Note that if travel/proposal development grants have human subject research (HSR), then IRB approval or exemption will be required before MIT reimburses expenses. According to US federal regulations, a human subject is a living individual about whom an investigator conducting research obtains 1) data through intervention or interaction with the individual (e.g., through an interview, focus group, or survey), or 2) identifiable private information (e.g., individual-level health or education data). For more information on budget, requirements, and process, please see instructions in the relevant application forms, for which reference documents exist on the RFP page.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Since J-PAL is part of MIT, everyone who is associated with J-PAL, including all researchers worldwide affiliated with J-PAL (affiliates and invited researchers), as well as all co-authors on J-PAL funded or implemented studies are considered part of the broader MIT community. It is therefore our hope and expectation that they will adhere to the MIT code of conduct, as well as the J-PAL code of conduct. MIT's section titled "Relations and Responsibilities Within the MIT Community" contains specific provisions regarding personal conduct, harassment, discrimination and retaliation, violence against community members, and substance use. Please take some time to review these.

Because almost all researchers we work with are also part of other university communities, they may also be subject to their host universities' policies and procedures. Many of these policies may be very similar to the MIT policies above. Finally, many researchers are separately affiliated with other academic associations and organizations, including the American Economic Association, and they should continue to abide by the codes of conduct established by the associations and organizations to which they belong. The AEA's code of conduct is available here.



If researchers and/or staff of J-PAL funded projects learn of or suspect bribery, corruption, fraud or other abuses that are in violation of any donor, MIT, or J-PAL community policies, they must immediately inform the J-PAL Initiative team.

GRANT CONDITIONS

<u>Full and Pilot Grants</u>: If your proposal is selected for funding, the terms of the award will be as follows:

- 1. **Research conduct**: Grantees will be required to have IRB approval or exemption from the IRB of Record.
- 2. **Letter of Transmission:** Grantees must provide a letter from the receiving institution of the award to show that they have reviewed your proposal and accept your budget. Please follow the MIT approved language for the Letter of Transmission as follows:
 - a. Example language for Letter of Transmission: (On ITRA letterhead)

 The <name of ITRA> is pleased to support the <Name of research> proposal and will plan on carrying out the work in accordance with the submitted budget. <NAME OF PI at ITRA> will serve as <ITRA's> Principal Investigator for this work. The <ITRA> takes full responsibility for the actions and well-being of <PI's name> in the course of the activities related to the scope of work for this research project. For any concerns about the technical aspects of the project, please contact <PI's name and email>. For administrative or contractual issues, please contact <ITRA's grant manager name and email>.
- 3. **Peer-review proposals**: Grantees may be requested to peer-review proposals in future Governance Initiative rounds in which they are not applying for funding. Acceptance of funding signals the grantee's consent to peer-review proposals upon the Governance Initiative's request.
- 4. **Project registration**: Within three months of the start date indicated on the proposal, grantees must register their trial with the <u>AEA RCT Registry</u>. Registration includes 18 required fields, such as your name and a small subset of your IRB requirements. There is also the opportunity to include more information, including power calculations and an optional pre-analysis plan. (Full studies only)
- 5. **Reporting**: Grantees will be requested to provide a brief start-up report, annual financial updates; annual progress reports; a final financial report within 60 days of completion of the award period; and (*Full studies only*) a final substantive report with preliminary results within 12 months of completion of the award period, which will be made public on the J-PAL website.
- 6. **Collecting and reporting program cost data**: Policymakers are interested in program costs, as it is one of the key factors in their decision to support a program. Cost data also allows for <u>cost effectiveness analysis (CEA)</u>, which J-PAL may conduct (with permission from the researchers), even if such analysis is not part of an academic paper. In order to facilitate cost collection,



Governance Initiative awards include \$1,000 to defray expenses associated with collecting cost data. The Governance Initiative will provide a costing worksheet for grantees to update annually. If grantees are unable to collect detailed cost data, grantees are still required to provide estimates of total program cost, average cost per beneficiary, and marginal cost to add another beneficiary. The Governance Initiative requires grantees to collect and report the cost of the program they are evaluating separately from all research costs in their final narrative report. We recommend research teams regularly track costs as they are incurred to maximize accuracy. While not required, many teams also find it easier to submit cost data reports on an annual basis.

- 7. **Collecting and reporting Gender-disaggregated data**: J-PAL, through its Gender sector, is making an effort to study heterogeneity in program impacts by beneficiary/participant gender more systematically. Please note that the following request only applies to J-PAL internal reports and does not extend to the academic paper or online J-PAL summary.
 - Many studies funded by J-PAL initiatives already collect study participants' gender. In such cases, and when outcome data are individual-specific, we request that grantees conduct heterogeneity analyses by beneficiary gender for the study's main results for internal reporting to J-PAL (to be shared in the final grant report). A single study might be underpowered to detect heterogeneous treatment effects, or null results might not seem interesting in one study, but these findings may be meaningful when included in an analysis across studies. J-PAL will use the reported results for (a) determining potential pooled statistical analyses to conduct across studies and (b) generating gender-related policy lessons. Our reporting template will include a question on this, which researchers are encouraged to fill in when applicable. We recognize that there will be cases where this reporting is not applicable, for various reasons. In these cases, the PIs can just provide a brief explanation to be shared with the Gender sector.
- 8. **Data publication**: Grantees may be requested to share data collection instruments and methodologies with other grantees. Furthermore, researchers funded through this grant will be required to publish de-identified data in accordance with J-PAL's <u>Data and Code Availability Policy</u>. J-PAL's research team can work with you to clean, label, de-identify, document, and replicate datasets collected as part of a randomized trial before publishing them in the <u>J-PAL Dataverse</u> or another data repository of your choice. (*Full studies only*)
- 9. **Participate in the Governance Initiative's activities**: Grantees may be requested to participate in one of the Governance Initiative's activities at a mutually agreed time and place. Activities may include evidence workshops, matchmaking conferences, or presentations to the Governance Initiative's donors.
- 10. **Credit the Governance Initiative:** Any presentations and publications, including academic papers, policy briefs, press releases, blogs, and organizational newsletters, that emerge from this project should credit the Governance Initiative. The exact wording on crediting the Governance Initiative and donor support will be provided in the terms of your award.



<u>Travel/Proposal development grants</u>: If your proposal is selected for funding, the terms of the award will be as follows:

- 1. Research Conduct: Grantees are responsible for following appropriate IRB protocol and providing the Governance Initiative with copies of any IRB approvals or exemptions, if any are necessary. If IRB is required, the IRB approval must be held by the institution that enters into the subaward agreement with MIT. In addition, they are expected to adhere to MIT's community-wide policies that are available here, as well as policies put in place by the UK
 Foreign, Commonwealth & Development Office.
- 2. **Submit report:** Grantees are required to submit a brief report within 30 days of completing travel. If the travel/proposal development work results in non-initiative-funded follow-on projects, grantees should inform the Governance Initiative as part of their final report or upon receipt of additional funding.
- 3. **Participate in Governance Initiative activities:** Grantees agree to participate in one Governance Initiative activity or event. The Governance Initiative will cover associated costs.
- 4. **Credit the Governance Initiative:** Any presentations and publications, including academic papers, policy briefs, press releases, blogs, and organizational newsletters that emerge from this project should credit the Governance Initiative. The exact wording on crediting [Initiative Name] and donor support will be provided in the terms of your award.
- 5. Applicants requesting proposal development funds for costs at their institution for human subject research (versus direct reimbursement to the PI after travel, where this is not required) must provide a letter from the receiving institution of the award to show that they have reviewed your proposal and accept your budget.
 - a. Please follow the MIT approved language for the Letter of Transmission as follows: Example language for Letter of Transmission: (On ITRA letterhead)

 The <name of ITRA> is pleased to support the <Name of research> proposal and will plan on carrying out the work in accordance with the submitted budget. <NAME OF PI at ITRA> will serve as <ITRA's> Principal Investigator for this work. The <ITRA> takes full responsibility for the actions and well-being of <PI's name> in the course of the activities related to the scope of work for this research project. For any concerns about the technical aspects of the project, please contact <PI's name and email>. For administrative or contractual issues, please contact <ITRA's grant manager name and email>.

LINKS TO ALL RFP MATERIALS

Details on the overall Initiative research agenda, as well as all submission templates and reference documents that make up the overall RFP package, are all available at: https://www.povertyactionlab.org/initiative/governance-initiative-request-proposals



OTHER FAQS

For questions on RFP priorities, application and review processes, eligibility, and general inquiries, please reach out to: gi@povertyactionlab.org, or visit the Governance Initiative website.

For questions on award set-up and administration, please reach out to gi grant admin@povertyactionlab.org.

Annex I: J-PAL Leads by Region

| J-PAL Regional Office | Regional Point Person(s) | Contact Information |
|--|---|-----------------------------------|
| J-PAL Africa | Rochelle Jacobs (Associate Director of Research) | rjacobs@povertyactionlab.org |
| J-PAL Europe | Adrien Pawlik (Associate Director of Research) | apawlik@povertyactionlab.org |
| J-PAL Latin America & the Caribbean | Edivaldo Constantino (Senior Research Manager) | econstantino@povertyactionlab.org |
| J-PAL Middle East & North Africa | Amira El-Shal (Associate Director of Research) | aelshal@povertyactionlab.org |
| J-PAL North America | Sarah Margolis (Senior Initiatives Manager) | smargolis@povertyactionlab.org |
| J-PAL South Asia | Sandhya Seetharaman (Senior Research Manager) | sseetharaman@povertyactionlab.org |
| J-PAL Southeast Asia | Nadia Rayhanna (Senior Research Manager) | nrayhanna@povertyactionlab.org |